

Rulemaking Comments

From: Skowronek, Robert (DEQ) [SKOWRONEKR@michigan.gov]
Sent: Monday, June 01, 2009 4:20 PM
To: Rulemaking Comments
Cc: Strong, Thor (DEQ)
Subject: RIN 3150-AI12 Michigan Comments on Part 37 Subpart B
Attachments: RIN 3150-AI12 Michigan Comments on Part 37 Subpart B.pdf

We appreciate the opportunity to review and comment on the draft rule language for the "Physical Protection of Byproduct Material," RIN 3150-AI12. Our comments are attached.

If we can be of additional assistance, please contact me.

Robert D. Skowronek, Chief
Radioactive Materials Unit
Radiological Protection Section
Waste and Hazardous Materials Division
517-241-1253

DOCKETED
USNRC

June 1, 2009 (4:44pm)

OFFICE OF SECRETARY
RULEMAKINGS AND
ADJUDICATIONS STAFF

Received: from mail1.nrc.gov (148.184.176.41) by TWMS01.nrc.gov
(148.184.200.145) with Microsoft SMTP Server id 8.1.358.0; Mon, 1 Jun 2009
16:20:02 -0400
X-Ironport-ID: mail1
X-SBRS: 4.8
X-MID: 2665144
X-IronPort-AV: E=Sophos;i="4.41,286,1241409600";
d="pdf?scan'208,217";a="2665144"
Received: from coreosmtp1.state.mi.us (HELO smtpout.michigan.gov)
([136.181.195.42]) by mail1.nrc.gov with ESMTP; 01 Jun 2009 16:19:43 -0400
Received: from coreexsmtp1.som.ad.state.mi.us ([10.42.124.17]) by
COREOSMTP1.som.ad.state.mi.us with InterScan Message Security Suite; Mon, 01
Jun 2009 16:19:41 -0400
Received: from HCS084EXCHPE006.som.ad.state.mi.us ([10.42.92.69]) by
coreexsmtp1.som.ad.state.mi.us with Microsoft SMTPSVC(6.0.3790.3959); Mon, 1
Jun 2009 16:19:41 -0400
X-MimeOLE: Produced By Microsoft Exchange V6.5
Content-Class: urn:content-classes:message
MIME-Version: 1.0
Content-Type: multipart/mixed;
boundary="----_=_NextPart_001_01C9E2F6.4B5551B9"
Subject: RIN 3150-AI12 Michigan Comments on Part 37 Subpart B
Date: Mon, 1 Jun 2009 16:19:41 -0400
Message-ID:
<16F40A68F887AD46B10ED20F418EECD0ABFEEC@HCS084EXCHPE006.som.ad.state.mi.
us>
X-MS-Has-Attach: yes
X-MS-TNEF-Correlator:
Thread-Topic: RIN 3150-AI12 Michigan Comments on Part 37 Subpart B
Thread-Index: Acni9knLsQ1fYKHyscuusGmb/s9/cA==
From: "Skowronek, Robert (DEQ)" <SKOWRONEKR@michigan.gov>
To: <Rulemaking.Comments@nrc.gov>
CC: "Strong, Thor (DEQ)" <STRONGT@michigan.gov>
Return-Path: SKOWRONEKR@michigan.gov
X-OriginalArrivalTime: 01 Jun 2009 20:19:41.0299 (UTC) FILETIME=[4B7B8C30:01C9E2F6]



JENNIFER M. GRANHOLM
GOVERNOR

STATE OF MICHIGAN
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY
LANSING



STEVEN E. CHESTER
DIRECTOR

June 1, 2009

Mr. Mark R. Shaffer, Director
Division of Intergovernmental Liaison and Rulemaking
Office of Federal and State Materials and
Environmental Management Programs
United States Nuclear Regulatory Commission
Washington, DC 20555-0001

Dear Mr. Shaffer:

We appreciate the advance opportunity to review and comment on the preliminary draft rule language for the "Physical Protection of Byproduct Material," RIN 3150-A112.

We have two comments on the draft language:

1. The draft language in 37.21(c)(2) states, "Licensees or applicants need not subject the categories of individuals listed in § 37.41(a) through (l) to the access authorization program."

This can be interpreted to mean that the licensee or applicant can, if they choose, subject the individuals listed in 37.41 to the licensee's access authorization program. Does the NRC intend to give licensees this option or does the wording need to be changed?

2. The E-mail address in 37.31(d)(3)(ii) should be corrected from "<http://www.nrc.gov/site-help/e-submittals.html>" to "<http://www.nrc.gov/site-help/e-submittals.html>".

Also, Michigan is currently revising its rules in preparation to file an application with the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) to become an Agreement State. We are using the plain language guidelines set forth in "Administrative Rules in Michigan: A Manual of Style and Procedures," in NRC's NUREG-1379, Revision 1, "Editorial Style Guide," and other plain language principles. Enclosed is a redraft in underline and strikethrough format of portions of the regulations proposed in the draft Federal Register.

If we can be of additional assistance, please contact me.

Sincerely,

Robert D. Skowronek, Chief
Radioactive Materials Unit
Radiological Protection Section
Waste and Hazardous Materials Division
517-241-1253

RDS:JK
Enclosure

Michigan Department of Environmental Quality
Waste and Hazardous Materials Division
Radiological Protection Section

Comments on Draft Federal Register Notice RIN 3150-A112
Physical Protection of Byproduct Material

§ 37.3 Definitions.

As used in this part:

Background Investigation means the investigation conducted by a licensee or applicant to support the determination of trustworthiness and reliability. Trustworthiness and reliability are characteristics of an individual considered dependable in judgment, character, and performance, such that unescorted access to category 1 or category 2 quantities of radioactive material by that individual does not constitute an unreasonable risk to the public health and safety or common defense and security. A determination of trustworthiness and reliability for this purpose is based ~~upon~~ on a background investigation.

Reviewing Official means the individual who ~~shall make~~ makes the trustworthiness and reliability determination of an individual to determine whether the individual ~~may shall~~ shall have, or continue to have, unescorted access to category 1 or category 2 quantities of radioactive materials that ~~are possessed by the licensee~~ possesses.

Subpart B — Background Investigations and Access Control Program

§ 37.21 Personnel access authorization requirements for category 1 or category 2 quantities of radioactive material.

(a) General.

- (1) Each licensee ~~who is~~ authorized to possess category 1 or category 2 quantities of radioactive material at a facility shall comply with the requirements of this subpart.
- (2) Each licensee shall establish, implement, and maintain its access authorization program in accordance with the requirements of this subpart.
- (3) Each applicant for a license or license amendment to possess category 1 or category 2 quantities of radioactive material at a facility shall implement the requirements of this subpart before taking possession of category 1 or category 2 quantities of radioactive material.

(b) General performance objective. The licensee's or applicant's access authorization program must ~~ensure~~ make sure that the individuals specified in paragraph (c)(1) of this section are trustworthy and reliable.

(c) Applicability.

- (1) Licensees or applicants shall subject the following individuals to an access authorization program:
 - (i) Any individual to whom a licensee intends to ~~permit~~ allow unescorted access to category 1 or category 2 quantities of radioactive material;
 - (ii) Vehicle drivers and accompanying individuals for road shipments of category 1 quantities of radioactive material;
 - (iii) Movement control center personnel for shipments of category 1 quantities of radioactive material;

- (iv) Any individual whose assigned duties provide access to shipment information on category 1 quantities of radioactive material; and
- (v) Reviewing officials.
- (2) Licensees or applicants need not subject the categories of individuals listed in § 37.41(a) through (l) to the access authorization program.
- (3) Licensees or applicants shall approve for unescorted access to category 1 or category 2 quantities of radioactive material only those individuals with job duties that ~~permit~~ require unescorted access to category 1 or category 2 quantities of radioactive material.
- (4) Licensees or applicants shall not grant access to individuals who have been rejected for unescorted access to category 1 or category 2 quantities of radioactive material, Safeguards Information, or as a reviewing official.

§ 37.23 Program requirements.

- (a) Granting unescorted access authorization. Licensees and applicants shall implement the requirements of this subpart for granting initial or reinstated unescorted access authorization. The investigatory information collected to satisfy the requirements of this subpart for individuals who are being considered for unescorted access authorization ~~shall~~ be is valid for a trustworthiness and reliability determination by a licensee or applicant for 60 calendar days.
- (b) Reviewing officials.
 - (1) Each licensee or applicant shall nominate one or more individuals to be reviewing officials and shall submit the names of these individuals and their fingerprints to the NRC for a criminal history records check. The nominated individuals shall undergo the background investigation aspects ~~that are~~ required by § 37.25(a)(2) – ~~to~~ (a)(9) before their names and fingerprints are submitted to the NRC. The fingerprints of the nominated reviewing official must be taken by a law enforcement agency, federal or state agencies that provide finger printing services to the public, or commercial fingerprinting services authorized by a State to take fingerprints.
 - (i) Reviewing officials ~~must~~ shall be ~~permitted~~ allowed unescorted access to category 1 or category 2 quantities of radioactive materials or access to Safeguards Information, if the licensee possesses Safeguards Information, as part of their job duties.
 - (ii) Reviewing officials nominated by the licensee or applicant and approved by the NRC are the only individuals who shall make trustworthiness and reliability determinations and grant unescorted access to category 1 or category 2 quantities of radioactive materials possessed by the licensee.
 - (iii) Reviewing officials cannot approve other individuals to act as reviewing officials.
 - (2) Reviewing officials shall not make any trustworthiness and reliability determinations or grant unescorted access to any individual until the ~~reviewing officials have been approved by the NRC~~ approves the reviewing officials.
 - (3) Reviewing officials shall be re-approved by the NRC every 10 years.
 - (4) Individuals nominated as reviewing officials who receive a preliminary denial from the NRC have the right to complete, correct, and explain information obtained through the background investigation ~~prior to~~ before a final adverse determination.
- (c) Informed consent.
 - (1) Licensees and applicants shall not initiate a background investigation without the informed and signed consent of the subject individual. This consent ~~shall~~ must include authorization to share personal information with other individuals or organizations as necessary to complete the background investigation. ~~Prior to~~ Before a final adverse

determination, the licensee or applicant shall provide the individual with an opportunity to correct any inaccurate or incomplete information that is developed during the background investigation.

- (2) The subject individual may withdraw his or her consent at any time. Licensees shall inform the individual that:
 - (i) If an individual withdraws his or her consent, the licensee or applicant ~~may~~ shall not initiate any elements of the background investigation that were not in progress ~~at the time~~ when the individual withdrew his or her consent. The licensee or applicant shall record and maintain the status of the individual's background investigation, his or her withdrawal of consent for the background investigation, the reason given by the individual for the withdrawal, and any pertinent information collected from the background investigation elements that were completed.
 - (ii) The licensee or applicant shall inform the individual that the withdrawal of consent for the background investigation is sufficient cause for denial or termination of unescorted access authorization.
- (d) Personal history disclosure. Any individual who is applying for unescorted access authorization shall disclose the personal history information that is required by the licensee's or applicant's access authorization program for the reviewing official to ~~make a determination of~~ determine the individual's trustworthiness and reliability. Refusal to provide, or the falsification of, any personal history information required by this subpart is sufficient cause for denial or termination of unescorted access.
- (e) Determination basis.
 - (1) The reviewing official shall determine whether to grant, deny, unfavorably terminate, maintain, or administratively withdraw an individual's unescorted access authorization status based on an evaluation of all of the information required by this subpart.
 - (2) Reviewing officials ~~may~~ shall not grant unescorted access to an individual until the reviewing official has evaluated all of the information required by this subpart and determined that the individual is trustworthy and reliable. Reviewing officials may deny unescorted access to any individual based on disqualifying information obtained at any time during the background investigation.
 - (3) The licensee or applicant shall document the basis for concluding whether or not there is reasonable assurance that an individual granted unescorted access to category 1 or category 2 quantities of radioactive material is trustworthy and reliable. Licensees shall maintain a list of persons approved for unescorted access authorization and a list of those individuals that have been denied unescorted access authorization.
- (f) Procedures.
 - (1) Licensees and applicants shall develop, implement, and maintain written procedures for conducting background investigations for persons who are applying for unescorted access authorization to category 1 or category 2 quantities of radioactive material.
 - (2) Licensees shall develop, implement, and maintain written procedures for updating background investigations for persons who are applying for reinstatement of unescorted access authorization.
 - (3) Licensees shall develop, implement, and maintain written procedures to ~~ensure~~ make sure that persons who have been denied unescorted access authorization are not allowed access to category 1 or category 2 quantities of radioactive material even with an escort.
 - (4) Licensees and applicants shall include a procedure for the notification of individuals who are denied unescorted access. The procedures must include provisions for the review, at the request of the affected individual, of a denial or termination of unescorted access authorization. The procedure must contain a provision to ~~ensure~~ make sure that the individual is informed of the grounds for the denial or termination of unescorted

access authorization and allow the individual an opportunity to provide additional relevant information and an opportunity for an objective review of the information upon which the denial or termination of unescorted access authorization was based. The procedure must provide for an impartial and independent internal management review.

(g) Right to correct and complete information.

(1) ~~Prior to~~ Before any final adverse determination, licensees or applicants shall provide each individual subject to this subpart with the right to complete, correct, and explain information obtained as a result of the licensee's background investigation.

~~Confirmation~~ The licensee or applicant shall maintain confirmation of receipt by the individual of this notification ~~must be maintained by the licensee~~ for 1 year from the date of the notification.

(2) If after reviewing the criminal history record an individual believes that it is incorrect or incomplete in any respect and wishes to change, correct, update, or explain anything in the record, the individual may initiate challenge procedures. These procedures include direct application by the individual challenging the record to the law enforcement agency that contributed the questioned information or a direct challenge as to the accuracy or completeness of any entry on the criminal history record to the Assistant Director, Federal Bureau of Investigation Identification Division, Washington, DC 20537-9700 as set forth in 28 CFR 16.30 through 16.34. In the latter case, the FBI will forward the challenge to the agency that submitted the data, and will request that agency verify or correct the challenged entry. Upon receipt of an official communication directly from the agency that contributed the original information, the FBI Identification Division makes any changes necessary in accordance with the information supplied by that agency. Licensees ~~must~~ shall provide at least 10 days for an individual to initiate action to challenge the results of an FBI criminal history records check after the record being made available for his or her review. The licensee may make a final adverse determination based ~~upon~~ on the criminal history record only after receipt of the FBI's confirmation or correction of the record.

(h) Records. The licensee shall retain documentation regarding the trustworthiness and reliability of individual employees for 3 years after the individual's employment ends.

§ 37.25 Background investigations.

(a) Initial Investigation. Before granting an individual unescorted access to category 1 or category 2 quantities of radioactive material, licensees and applicants shall complete a background investigation of the individual seeking unescorted access authorization. The scope of the investigation shall encompass at least the past 5 years. The background investigation must include at a minimum:

(1) Fingerprinting and a Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) identification and criminal history records check in accordance with § 37.31 or Part 73.

(2) Verification of true identity. Licensees and applicants shall verify the true identity of an individual who is applying for unescorted access authorization to ~~ensure~~ make sure that the applicant is the person that they claim to be. A licensee or applicant for a license shall review official identification documents (e.g., driver's license, passport, government identification, state, province, or country of birth issued certificate of birth) and compare the documents ~~to~~ with personal information data provided by the individual to identify any discrepancy in the information. Licensees shall document the type, expiration, and identification number of the identification, or maintain a photocopy of identifying documents on file in accordance with § 37.61. Licensees shall certify and affirm in writing that the identification was properly reviewed and maintain the certification and all related documents for review upon inspection.

- (3) Employment history evaluation. Licensees and applicants shall complete an employment history evaluation. Licensees shall verify the individual's employment with each previous employer for the most recent 5 years before the date of application, and if not continuously employed then the scope shall be expanded to 7 years to verify employment with an employer of the longest duration.
- (4) Verification of education. Licensees and applicants shall verify that the individual participated in the education process during the claimed period.
- (5) Military history verification. Licensees and applicants shall verify that the individual was in the military during the claimed period.
- (6) Credit history evaluation. Licensees and applicants shall evaluate the entire credit history of any individual who is applying for unescorted access authorization.
- (7) Criminal history review. Reviewing officials shall obtain from local criminal justice resources the criminal history record of an individual who is applying for unescorted access authorization and evaluate the information to determine whether the individual has a record of local criminal activity that may ~~adversely impact~~ compromise his or her trustworthiness and reliability. The scope of the applicant's local criminal history review shall cover all residences of record for the ~~5-year period~~ 5 years preceding the date of the application for unescorted access authorization.
- (8) Character and reputation determination. Licensees and applicants shall complete reference checks to determine the character and reputation of an individual who has applied for unescorted access authorization. Reference checks may not be conducted with any person ~~who is~~ known to be a close member of the individual's family, including but not limited to, the individual's spouse, parents, siblings, or children, or any individual who resides in the individual's permanent household. Reference checks under this subpart must be limited to whether the individual has been and continues to be trustworthy and reliable.
- (9) The licensee or applicant shall also, to the extent possible, obtain independent information to corroborate that provided by the individual (i.e., seek references not supplied by the individual).
- (10) If a previous employer, educational institution, or any other entity ~~with which the individual claims to have been engaged~~ ~~fails to~~ does not provide information or indicates an inability or unwillingness to provide information within 3 business days of the request, the licensee shall:
 - (i) Document the refusal or unwillingness in the record of investigation; and
 - (ii) Obtain a confirmation of employment, educational enrollment and attendance, or other form of engagement claimed by the individual from at least one alternate source that has not been previously used.
- (b) Reinvestigations. For all individuals granted unescorted access to category 1 or category 2 quantities of radioactive material, trustworthiness and reliability shall be reinvestigated every 10 years. Reinvestigations shall include fingerprinting and an FBI criminal history check and a credit history check and shall address the 10 years following the previous investigation.

§ 37.31 Requirements for criminal history records checks of individuals granted unescorted access to category 1 or category 2 quantities of radioactive material.

- (a) General.
 - (1) Each licensee ~~who is~~ authorized to possess category 1 or category 2 quantities of radioactive material at a facility shall comply with the requirements of this subpart.

- (2) Each applicant requesting authorization to possess category 1 or category 2 quantities of radioactive material shall comply with requirements of this subpart before taking possession of category 1 or category 2 quantities of material at a facility.
- (b) General performance objective and requirements.
- (1) Except for those individuals in § 37.41 of this subpart, each licensee subject to the ~~provisions of this subpart~~ shall fingerprint each individual who is to be permitted allowed unescorted access to category 1 or category 2 quantities of radioactive material. Licensees shall ~~transmit~~ send all collected fingerprints to the Commission for transmission to the Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI). The licensee shall use the information received from the FBI as part of the required background investigation to determine whether to grant or to deny further unescorted access to category 1 or category 2 quantities of radioactive materials for that individual.
 - (2) The licensee shall notify each affected individual that their fingerprints will be used to secure a review of their criminal history record, and shall inform them of the procedures for revising the record or adding explanations to the record.
 - (3) Fingerprinting is not required if a licensee is reinstating an individual's unescorted access authorization to category 1 or category 2 quantities of radioactive materials if:
 - (i) The individual returns to the same facility that granted unescorted access authorization within 365 days of the termination of their unescorted access authorization; and
 - (ii) The previous access was terminated under favorable conditions.
 - (4) Fingerprints do not need to be taken if an individual who is an employee of a licensee, contractor, manufacturer, or supplier has been granted unescorted access to category 1 or category 2 quantities of radioactive material or access to Safeguards Information by another licensee, based in part on a criminal history records check under this subpart or part 73 of this chapter. An existing criminal history records check file may be transferred to the licensee asked to grant unescorted access in accordance with the ~~provisions of § 37.61(a)(3)~~.
 - (5) All fingerprints obtained by a licensee under this subpart must be submitted to the Commission.
 - (6) Licensees shall review the criminal history records as part of the trustworthiness and reliability evaluation for each individual seeking unescorted access authorization to category 1 or category 2 quantities of radioactive material.
 - (7) Licensees shall use the information obtained as part of a criminal history records check ~~solely for the purpose of determining~~ to determine an individual's suitability for unescorted access authorization to category 1 or category 2 quantities of radioactive materials or access to Safeguards Information.
- (c) Prohibitions.
- (1) Licensees ~~may~~ shall not base a final determination to deny an individual unescorted access authorization to category 1 or category 2 quantities of radioactive material solely on the basis of information received from the FBI involving:
 - (i) An arrest more than 1 year old ~~for which~~ if there is no information of the disposition of the case; or
 - (ii) An arrest that resulted in dismissal of the charge or an acquittal.
 - (2) Licensees ~~may~~ shall not use information received from a criminal history records check obtained under this subpart in a manner that ~~would infringe upon~~ infringes on the rights of any individual under the First Amendment to the Constitution of the United States, nor shall licensees use the information in any way that ~~would discriminate~~ discriminates among individuals on the basis of race, religion, national origin, sex, or age.
- (d) Procedures for processing of fingerprint checks.

- (1) ~~For the purpose of complying~~ To comply with this subpart, licensees and applicants shall use ~~an appropriate~~ a method listed in § 37.5, Communications, to submit to the Office of Administration, Security Processing Unit, Mail Stop TWB-05 B32M, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission, Washington, DC 20555-0012, one completed, legible standard fingerprint card (Form FD-258, ORIMDNRCOOOZ) or, where practicable, other fingerprint record for each individual requiring unescorted access to category 1 or category 2 quantities of radioactive material. Copies of these forms may be obtained by writing the Office of Information Services, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission, Washington, DC 20555-0001, by calling (301) 415-7232, or by e-mail to FORMS.Resource@nrc.gov. Acceptable alternative formats are referenced in § 37.5. The licensee shall establish procedures to ~~ensure~~ make sure that the quality of the fingerprints taken minimizes the rejection rate of fingerprint cards due to illegible or incomplete cards.
- (2) The Commission will review applications for criminal history records checks for completeness. Any Form FD-258 or other fingerprint record containing omissions or evident errors will be returned to the licensee for corrections. The fee for processing fingerprint checks includes one free resubmission if the FBI returns the initial submission ~~is returned by the FBI~~ because the fingerprint impressions cannot be classified. The one free resubmission must have the FBI Transaction Control Number reflected on the resubmission. If additional submissions are necessary, they will be treated as an initial submittal and require a second payment of the processing fee. The payment of a new processing fee entitles the submitter to an additional free resubmittal, if necessary. Previously rejected submissions may not be included with the third submission because the submittal will be rejected automatically.
- (3) (i) Fees for the processing of fingerprint checks are due upon application. Licensees shall submit payment with the application for the processing of fingerprints through corporate check, certified check, cashier's check, money order, or electronic payment, made payable to "U.S. NRC." (For guidance on making electronic payments, contact the Security Branch, Division of Facilities and Security, at (301) 415-7404). Combined payment for multiple applications is acceptable.
- (ii) The application fee is the sum of the user fee charged by the FBI for each fingerprint card or other fingerprint record submitted by the NRC on behalf of a licensee, and an administrative processing fee assessed by the NRC. The NRC processing fee covers administrative costs associated with NRC handling of licensee fingerprint submissions. The Commission publishes the amount of the fingerprint check application fee on the NRC public Web site. (To find the current fee amount, go to the Electronic Submittals page at <http://www.nrc.gov/site-help/e-submittals.html> and select the link for the Criminal History Program.) The Commission will directly notify licensees who are subject to this regulation of any fee changes.
- (4) The Commission will forward to the submitting licensee or applicant all data received from the FBI as a result of the licensee's or applicant's application(s) for criminal history records checks.

§ 37.41 Relief from fingerprinting, identification, and criminal history records checks and other elements of background investigations for designated categories of individuals permitted allowed unescorted access to certain radioactive materials or other property.

Fingerprinting, and the identification and criminal history records checks required by section 149 of the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as amended, and other elements of background checks are

not required for the following individuals ~~prior to~~ before granting unescorted access to category 1 or category 2 quantities of radioactive materials

- (a) An employee of the Commission or of the Executive Branch of the U.S. Government who has undergone fingerprinting for a prior U.S. Government criminal history check;
- (b) A Member of Congress;
- (c) An employee of a ~~member~~ Member of Congress or ~~Congressional~~ congressional committee who has undergone fingerprinting for a prior U.S. Government criminal history check;
- (d) The Governor of a State or his or her designated State employee representative;
- (e) Federal, State, or local law enforcement personnel;
- (f) State Radiation Control Program Directors and State Homeland Security Advisors or their designated State employee representatives;
- (g) Agreement State employees conducting security inspections on behalf of the NRC pursuant to an agreement executed under section 274.i. of the Atomic Energy Act;
- (h) Representatives of the International Atomic Energy Agency (IAEA) engaged in activities associated with the U.S./IAEA Safeguards Agreement who have been certified by the NRC;
- (i) Emergency response personnel who are responding to an emergency;
- (j) Commercial vehicle drivers for road shipments of category 2 quantities of radioactive material;
- (k) An individual who has a favorably adjudicated U.S. Government criminal history record check within the last five (5) years, pursuant to a comparable U.S. Government program involving fingerprinting and an FBI identification and criminal history records check (e.g., National Agency Check, Transportation Worker Identification Credentials (TWIC) in accordance with 49 CFR 1572, Bureau of Alcohol Tobacco Firearms and Explosives background check and clearances in accordance with 27 CFR 555, Health and Human Services security risk assessments for possession and use of select agents and toxins in accordance with 42 CFR 73, Hazardous Material security threat assessment for hazardous material endorsement to commercial drivers license in accordance with 49 CFR 1572, Customs and Border Patrol's Free and Secure Trade (FAST) Program); and
- (l) Any individual who has an active federal security clearance, provided that they make available the appropriate documentation. ~~Written confirmation from the~~ The Agency/employer who granted the federal security clearance or reviewed the criminal history record check ~~must be provided~~ shall provide written confirmation to the licensee. The licensee ~~must~~ shall retain this documentation for ~~a period of three (3)~~ 3 years from the date the individual no longer requires access to the facility.

§ 37.61 Protection of information.

- (a) (1) Each licensee and applicant who obtains background information on an individual under this subpart shall establish and maintain a system of files and procedures for protection of the record and the personal information from unauthorized disclosure.
- (2) The licensee or applicant ~~may~~ shall not disclose the record or personal information collected and maintained to persons other than the subject individual, his or her representative, or to those who ~~have a need to have access to the information in~~ performing to perform assigned duties in the process of granting or denying unescorted access to category 1 or category 2 quantities of radioactive material or Safeguards Information. No individual authorized to have access to the information ~~may~~ shall re-disseminate the information to any other individual who does not have a need to know.
- (3) The personal information obtained on an individual from a background investigation may be transferred to another licensee:
 - (i) Upon the individual's written request to the licensee holding the data to re-disseminate the information contained in ~~his/her~~ his or her file; and

- (ii) The gaining licensee verifies information such as name, date of birth, social security number, sex, and other applicable physical characteristics for identification.
- (4) The licensee shall make background investigation records obtained under this subpart available for examination by an authorized representative of the NRC to determine compliance with the regulations and laws.
- (5) The licensee shall retain all fingerprint and criminal history records received from the FBI, or a copy if the individual's file has been transferred, on an individual (including data indicating no record) for 3 years after termination or denial of unescorted access authorization to category 1 or category 2 quantities of radioactive material.

§ 37.63 Reviews and corrective action.

- (a) Each licensee shall be responsible for the continuing effectiveness of the access authorization program. Each licensee shall ~~ensure~~ make sure that access authorization programs are reviewed to confirm compliance with the requirements of this subpart and that comprehensive actions are taken to correct any non-conformance that is identified. The review program shall evaluate all program performance objectives and requirements. The review team shall include at least one person who is knowledgeable and practiced in access authorization program performance objectives to assist in the overall assessment of the site's program effectiveness. Each licensee shall ~~ensure~~ make sure that its entire access program is reviewed nominally every 24 months. Licensees are responsible for determining the appropriate frequency, scope, and depth of additional review activities within the nominal 24-month period based on the review of program performance indicators, such as the frequency, nature, and severity of discovered problems, personnel or procedural changes, and previous audit findings.
- (b) The results of the reviews, along with any recommendations, must be documented. Each review report must identify conditions that are adverse to the proper performance of the access authorization program, the cause of the condition(s), and, when appropriate, recommend corrective actions, and corrective actions taken. The licensee shall review the findings and take any additional corrective actions, to include re-assessment of the deficient areas where indicated, to ~~preclude~~ prevent repetition of the condition.
- (c) Review records shall be maintained for 5 years.